
Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - May 20, 2020

Page | 1

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM

Wednesday, May 20, 2020

*
           Members of the media or the public may participate in the open session portion of this agenda by calling 1 (872)

240-3212, access code 970-102-125. All participants' phones will be muted. Attendance at the meeting in person will be
limited.  If you would like to provide comments for the any of the items on the agenda, please submit those to
planning@beloitwi.gov by 12:00 noon on Wednesday, May 20, 2020.

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. MINUTES
2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the May 6, 2020 Plan Commission meeting

Attachment

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS
3.a. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning from M-2, General

Manufacturing District, to C-1, Office District, for the property located at 1195 Prince Hall Drive
Attachment

3.b. Consideration of an amendment to a Conditional Use Permit to allow nightly rental of the rooms
in the Rooming House located at 1105 E. Grand Avenue
Attachment

4. REPORTS
4.a. Consideration of a two-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map for the property located at the

intersection of Ravine Drive and Natures Ridge Road in the Town of Beloit
Attachment

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

6. ADJOURNMENT

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/594661/05-06-2020_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/594789/May_20_Staff_Report_3_a___ZMA-2020-03_1195_Prince_Hall_Drive.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/594612/May_20_Staff_Report_3_b___CU-2020-04__1105_E._Grand_Ave__Rooming_House__FINAL.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/594793/May_20_Staff_Report_4_a___CSM-2020-10_Ravine_Drive___TOB_.pdf


Beloit Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - May 20, 2020

Page | 2

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service,
please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

City Hall Forum 
100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

7:00 PM 
Wednesday, May 6, 2020 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Meeting was called to order by Chairperson Faragher at 7:00PM. Commissioners Faragher, 
Weeden, Finnegan, Johnson, Ruster and Councilor Preuschl were available on the phone. 
Commissioner Haynes and Robson were absent.  

 
2. NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

2.a. Nomination and election of Chairperson 
Commissioner Ruster nominated Commissioner Weeden for Chairperson, and it was 
seconded by Commissioner Johnson. Roll call vote (5-0), motion passed. 

 
2.b. Nomination and election of Vice-Chairperson 

Commissioner Faragher nominated Commissioner Ruster for Vice-Chairperson, and it 
was seconded by Commissioner Johnson. Roll call vote (5-0), motion passed. 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

3.a. Consideration of the minutes of the April 22, 2020 Plan Commission meeting 
Commissioner Weeden indicated that there was a mistake in the minutes related to 
who called the meeting to order, but Julie updated the minutes and the corrected 
version is in the packet.  Commissioner Faragher made a motion, seconded by 
Commissioner Ruster to approve minutes. Roll call vote (5-0), motion passed. 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

4.a. Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow all-day school-age daycare for 
the property located at 1230 House Street  
Julie Christensen presented the staff report and recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Weeden opened the public hearing. 
 
Ms. Christensen stated that there was a concern from a neighboring property about 
displaying artwork on the fencing. Marilyn Sloniker stated that she would not be 
displaying any artwork in the fences like the previous owner had done. 

3



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
Commissioner Weeden closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Finnegan, seconded by Commissioner Faragher to 
approve the Conditional Use Permit.  Roll call vote (5-0), motion passed. 

 
4.b. Consideration of an amendment to the Planned Unit Development Master Land 

Use Plan to allow for the sale of landscaping materials on the property located at 
2426 Prairie Avenue 
Julie Christensen presented the staff report and recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Weeden asked if the portion of the property that is being proposed for 
the sale of landscaping materials is the same as the area for the duplexes.  Julie 
Christensen explained that it is in the area designated for duplexes, but that there is 
still room for the duplexes.  
 
Commissioner Weeden opened the public hearing. 
 
Aaron Nilson, 2426 Prairie Ave, owner of Aurum Contracting, stated that the sale of 
landscaping materials will take up a portion of the original duplex plan. Mr. Nilson 
said that the concrete blocks can easily be taken down, so that they can put up the 
duplexes later. Commissioner Faragher asked what they will be doing with the 
driveway, and if it can be removed when the duplexes are built. Mr. Nilson stated he 
can remove it.   
 
Councilor Preuschl asked Mr. Nilson if he understands all nine proposed conditions. 
Mr. Nilson says he does. Commissioner Faragher asked if there were any questions or 
comments from neighboring properties. Ms. Christensen stated that the comment 
was included in the packet and related to concerns about trucks speeding through 
neighborhood which the owner indicates have been addressed since the driveway on 
Virginia was installed. 
 
Commissioner Weeden closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Faragher, seconded by Commissioner Ruster to 
approve the amendment to the Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan.  
Roll call vote (5-0), motion passed. 
 

4.c. Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a School in a C-3, Community 
Commercial District, for the Eclipse Center property located at 600 Henry Avenue 
Julie Christensen presented the staff report and recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Faragher asked if the building is connected or freestanding. Ms. 
Christensen said it is a freestanding building with a new parking area. 

4



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
Commissioner Weeden opened the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Weeden asked about code requirement four, that if they do not finish 
before the twelve months what happens. Ms. Christensen stated that the City would 
have to amend the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) by going through the same public 
process being followed for the original CUP. Commissioner Weeden asked if the CUP 
would be for any school or just a charter school. Ms. Christensen said it is specifically 
for the charter school.  
 
Commissioner Faragher asked if it was still possible to drive around the entire 
building, and Ms. Christensen said that it was possible.  He then asked if the bus 
access was restricted to buses only.  Frank McKearn, representing R.H. Batterman, 
said it will be restricted to buses only. 
 
Commissioner Weeden closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Finnegan, seconded by Commissioner Faragher to 
approve the CUP.  Roll call vote (5-0), motion passed. 
 

 
5. REPORTS 

5.a. Consideration of a Resolution approving a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the 
property located at 600 Henry Avenue 
Julie Christensen presented the staff report and recommendation. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Finnegan and seconded by Commissioner Ruster to 
approve the resolution.  Roll call vote (5-0), motion passed. 
 
 

5.b. Consideration of a Resolution approving a three-lot Certified Survey Map for the 
property located at 720 Gateway Boulevard 
Julie Christensen presented the staff report and recommendation. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Faragher and seconded by Commissioner Finnegan to 
approve the resolution.  Roll call vote (5-0), motion passed. 
 

 
5.c. Consideration of a Resolution approving an Extraterritorial one-lot Certified Survey 

Map to combine the parcels at 2639 St. Lawrence Ave in the Town of Beloit 
Julie Christensen presented the staff report and recommendation. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Ruster and seconded by Commissioner Faragher to 
approve the resolution.  Roll call vote (5-0), motion passed. 

5



 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
 
6. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 

Julie Christensen explained that the Final Plat for Eagles Ridge No. 4 was on Council for 
Monday, but the City Council laid it over until the Development Agreement was also ready 
for City Council action.   
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion made by Faragher, and seconded by Ruster to adjourn the meeting. Motion 
carried, voice vote (5, 0).  Meeting was adjourned at 8:00PM.  
 
Respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts. 

6



May 20 Staff Report 3(a), ZMA-2020-03 1195 Prince Hall Drive 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  May 20, 2020 

Agenda Item:  3.a.  

File Number:  ZMA-2020-03 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  R.H. Batterman  
 
Owner:  ABC Supply Company Inc. 
 
Address/Location: 1195 Prince Hall Drive 
 
Applicant’s Request/Proposal:  R.H. Batterman, on behalf of ABC Supply Company Inc. has submitted an 
application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from M-2, General 
Manufacturing District to C-1, Office District, for the property located at 1195 Prince Hall Drive. 
 

Staff Analysis 

 
Project Summary:  ABC Supply Company Inc. has previously been approved for a 4-story office building at 3 
ABC Drive. As part of this project, off-site parking must be constructed to accommodate the development. The 
applicant submitted site plans for a commercial parking lot expansion. The proposed project includes 
combining this parcel with an adjacent property (1111 Prince Hall Drive) and removing an access point. The 
two properties are located in different zoning districts and must be the same to be combined.  

 
Existing Site Conditions:  1195 Prince Hall currently has a commercial office space and parking lot used by 
Mule-Hide Products Co.  

 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  To the north is the ABC Supply Co. Learning Center zoned M-2, General 
Manufacturing District. To the east is Fairbanks Moore, zoned M-2, General Manufacturing District. To the 
south is a vacant parcel with a parking lot zoned C-1, Office District. To the west is a 4-story office building for 
ABC Supply Co. zoned M-2, General Manufacturing.  
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan: The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map 
recommends office land uses for the subject property. The proposed zoning map amendment is consistent 
with this recommendation. 
 
Zoning Map Amendment Findings of Fact:  Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan 
Commission shall make a recommendation based on the following considerations: 
 

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property. 
The proposed use is compatible with the adjacent industrial and commercial uses. 

  
7



May 20 Staff Report 3(a), ZMA-2020-03 1195 Prince Hall Drive 

2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.  
The proposed zoning map amendment will allow the subject property to be combined with the 
adjacent southern property, which is already zoned C-1. 

 
3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification.  

The subject property is currently used as an office, and the proposed zoning map amendment will 
result in a better zoning classification based on the use of the property. 
 

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.  
The subject property is located on the ABC Supply Campus, which has seen dramatic investment and 
redevelopment over the past few years. The zoning map amendment will allow for the continued 
improvement of this area of the city.  

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION – ZONING MAP AMENDMENT: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the 
zoning district classification from M-2, General Manufacturing District to C-1, Office District, for the property 
located at 1195 Prince Hall Drive. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location & Zoning Map, Site Plan, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List. 
 
 
 

8



May 20 Staff Report 3(a), ZMA-2020-03 1195 Prince Hall Drive 

 
 

L
e

g
e

n
d

Z
o

n
in

g
 C

la
s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

<
a

ll 
o

th
e

r 
v
a

lu
e

s
>

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
IO

N
C

L
A

S
S

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
B

D
-1

C
B

D
-2

D
H

M
-1

M
-2

M
R

O

P
L

I

P
U

D

R
-1

A

R
-1

B

R
-2

R
-3

R
-4

P
a

rc
e

l 
P

o
ly

C
it
y
 L

im
it
s
 (

C
o
rp

 P
o

ly
)

9



May 20 Staff Report 3(a), ZMA-2020-03 1195 Prince Hall Drive 

1195 Prince Hall Drive 

1111 Prince Hall Drive 

10



May 20 Staff Report 3(a), ZMA-2020-03 1195 Prince Hall Drive  

 

11



May 20 Staff Report 3(a), ZMA-2020-03 1195 Prince Hall Drive  

 

12



May 20 Staff Report 3(a), ZMA-2020-03 1195 Prince Hall Drive  

  

13



May 20 Staff Report 3(a), ZMA-2020-03 1195 Prince Hall Drive  

 

 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
May 6, 2020 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
R.H. Batterman, on behalf of ABC Supply Company Inc. has submitted an application for review 
and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from 
M-2, General Manufacturing to C-1, Office District, for the property located at 1195 Prince Hall 
Drive. 
 

The applicant submitted site plans for a commercial parking lot expansion. The proposed project 
includes combining parcels with an adjacent property and removing an access point. The two 
properties are different zoning districts and must be cohesive to be combined.  

 
The following public hearings will be held regarding this proposed Zoning Map Amendment: 
 
City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, May 20, 2020, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 
matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
City Council:  Monday, June 1, 2020, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be 
heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 

We are interested in your opinion.* 
 

*Due to the COVID-19 crisis, members of the public are highly encouraged to provide oral 
or written comments to the Commission and City Council via alternative means.  You may 
mail your comments to the attention of Hilary Rottmann at 100 State Street or via email to 
rottmannh@beloitwi.gov.  You may also call (608) 364-6708 to provide your comments 
over the phone.  In-person attendance at Commission and Council meetings will be limited. 

14

mailto:rottmannh@beloitwi.gov


May 20 Staff Report 3(a), ZMA-2020-03 1195 Prince Hall Drive 

 

     

WATER TOWER LLC HEARTLAND 

BELOIT-PLEASANT 

2418 CROSSROADS STE 2000 

MADISON WI 53718 

    

FAIRBANKS MORSE LLC 

5605 CARNEGIE BLVD STE 500 

CHARLOTTE NC 28209-4674 

    

     

     

     

     

     

     

15



CU-2020-04, 1105 E. Grand Ave, Rooming House, FINAL

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: May 20, 2020

Agenda Item: 3(b)

File Number: CU-2020-04

General Information

Applicant: Josue Sandoval
Owner: Matt Finnegan/FPS Rental
Address/Location: 1105 E. Grand Ave
Applicant’s Request: Amendment of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow nightly rental of the rooms in
the Rooming House located at 1105 E. Grand Avenue.

Background

In 2015, the City Council issued the attached Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a Rooming/Boarding
House in a C-1, Office District, for the property located at 1105 E. Grand Avenue. Condition #2 requires the
minimum stay to be monthly, as that was the applicant’s plan at the time and the subject property is located
in a mostly residential area. Shortly before the COVID-19 pandemic, Planning staff discovered that the
Rooming House is being rented nightly and being offered on short term/vacation rental websites. Staff
initiated contact with the owner Matt Finnegan and operator (Josue Sandoval), who has applied to amend the
2015 CUP to remove condition #2.

Staff Analysis

Existing Conditions: The subject property is 0.18 acres in area and is located at the northeast corner of the T-
intersection of E. Grand Avenue and Wisconsin Avenue. The building is 2,560 square-feet and consists of a first
floor efficiency apartment and four rentable rooms on the second floor. Off-street parking is available in the
parking lot to the rear, which is located on an adjacent lot also owned by Mr. Finnegan (see attached photos).

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: There are 1- and 2-family residential uses to the west, north, and east of
the subject property, and commercial uses to the south. The subject property is located in a C-1 district that
runs along the south side of the 400 block of Central Ave as shown on the attached Location & Zoning Map.
Adjacent districts include R-1B, Single-Family Residential with C-3, Community Commercial to the south.

Proposed Amendment: The applicant operates several short term/vacation rentals in the City, and is seeking
authorization to rent the rooms in the subject Rooming House on a nightly basis. The subject property is billed
as “The Charming Manor” on Airbnb.com. According to the listing, there are five individual rooms available for
rent, with a shared kitchen, dining room, living room, and bathroom. The existing CUP includes a number of
conditions intended to achieve neighborhood compatibility, such as a maximum of five occupants and
allowing revocation of the CUP in the event of neighborhood disruptions or concerns. The existing CUP cannot
be transferred to a new owner, and references an on-site building supervisor in the first floor unit. The
proposed Amendment would involve up to five rental rooms and no on-site supervisor.

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan: The City’s Downtown Plan recommends Office Uses for the subject
property, which is consistent with the current C-1 zoning district classification. 16



CU-2020-04, 1105 E. Grand Ave, Rooming House, FINAL

Findings of Fact: Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a
recommendation based on the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to
or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

• The proposed nightly rental of the rooms on the subject property has been occurring for
several months without any issues or complaints from the public. However, as noted in the
attached letter from Visit Beloit, it is imperative that all licenses are obtained as soon as
possible.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted;

• The existing CUP includes numerous conditions of approval that are intended to prevent
disruptions to the neighborhood and an opportunity to revoke the CUP if necessary.

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood of the subject property;

• The proposed Amendment is not expected to impact nearby property values.
d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development

and improvement of the surrounding property;

• The surrounding area is fully developed.
e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so

dissimilar or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate
neighborhood that it will cause a depreciation in property values;

• No changes to the exterior are proposed at this time.
f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to

serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

• Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available and currently serve the property.
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and

• The Rooming House has an existing off-street parking lot.
h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

• The proposed use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
According to the applicant, certain short-term rental websites are collecting room taxes.
However, these taxes are not being remitted to the City, which has been referred to the
Finance Department for follow-up.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of an Amended Conditional Use Permit to
allow nightly rental of the rooms in the Rooming House located at 1105 E. Grand Avenue, based on the above
Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions:

1. This permit authorizes the use of the subject property as a Short-Term Rental Rooming House, where
rooms may be rented on a nightly or longer basis. A Rock County Lodging License is required.

2. The existing 2015 CUP and all conditions attached thereto remain in full force and effect. This
specifically includes the condition stating that the CUP is not transferable to a new owner, and
terminates upon Mr. Finnegan’s sale of the property.

3. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning &
Building Services may approve minor changes administratively.

ATTACHMENTS: CUP Decision Form, Location Map, Photos, 2015 CUP, Application, Public Notice, Mailing List,
and Letter from Visit Beloit.

17



CU-2020-04, 1105 E. Grand Ave, Rooming House, FINAL

Beloit Plan Commission
Conditional Use Permit Decision Form

When reviewing an application for a conditional use, the local government must look to the
requirements and conditions found in the local zoning ordinance and determine if the applicant
meets those requirements and conditions. The local government must provide substantial
evidence supporting their decision to grant or deny the permit, and to impose additional
conditions on the permit. Substantial evidence means facts and information, directly relating
to the requirements and conditions, that a reasonable person would accept in support of a
conclusion. Personal preferences and speculation are not sufficient forms of evidence. All
requirements and conditions imposed by the local government must be reasonable, and to the
extent practicable, measurable.

Permit Conditions
A local government is authorized to impose conditions on the permit that relate to the purpose
of the ordinance. Conditions must be reasonable, and to the extent practicable, measurable.
Conditions may limit the permit’s duration, transfer, or renewal.
List conditions imposed on the permit:

1. This permit authorizes the use of the subject property as a Short-Term Rental Rooming
House, where rooms may be rented on a nightly or longer basis. A Rock County Lodging
License is required.
Substantial Evidence: This condition amends condition #2 of the 2015 CUP for the subject
property, which established a minimum rental period of monthly. The Rock Co. Public
Health Department requires a license for motels, hotels, B&B’s, and Short-Term Rentals.

2. The existing 2015 CUP and all conditions attached thereto remain in full force and effect.
This specifically includes the condition stating that the CUP is not transferable to a new
owner, and terminates upon Mr. Finnegan’s sale of the property.
Substantial Evidence: Mr. Finnegan is a long-time property owner in this area and has
established a 5-year track record of operating a Rooming House that is compatible with the
surrounding residences. Given the significant negative impacts that could result from
irresponsible or negligent operation of a nightly rooming house, this condition limits the
transferability of the CUP as allowed by Wis. Stat. 62.23(7)(de).

3. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by
the Plan Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The
Director of Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes administratively.
Substantial Evidence: Standardized condition to establish a process for future changes.

Decision: Based on the findings of fact, conclusions of law, and the record in this matter, the
permit is:

Approved, with the conditions stated above Denied, for the following reasons:

18



CU-2020-04, 1105 E. Grand Ave, Rooming House, FINAL

CU-2020-04

19



CU-2020-04, 1105 E. Grand Ave, Rooming House, FINAL

Photos of Existing Structure (Source: Airbnb.com)

20



CU-2020-04, 1105 E. Grand Ave, Rooming House, FINAL

21



CU-2020-04, 1105 E. Grand Ave, Rooming House, FINAL

22



CU-2020-04, 1105 E. Grand Ave, Rooming House, FINAL

23



CU-2020-04, 1105 E. Grand Ave, Rooming House, FINAL

24



CU-2020-04, 1105 E. Grand Ave, Rooming House, FINAL

25



CU-2020-04, 1105 E. Grand Ave, Rooming House, FINAL

26



 

May 20 Staff Report 4(a), CSM-2020-10 Ravine Drive  (TOB)  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  May 20, 2020 

Agenda Item:  4.a. 

File Number:  CSM-2020-10 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  R.H. Batterman  
 
Owner:  Jeffery H & Yvonne W Wam  
 
Address/Location: Parcel Numbers -6-2-2051.1 & 2051.4 on Ravine Drive  
 
Applicant’s Request:  The applicant has proposed a 2-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 
Ravine Drive in the Town of Beloit.   
 

Staff Analysis 

 
Existing Conditions:  The current use of the area covered by this CSM is vacant platted land.   

Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed CSM is to take the two lots and reconfigure 
them to each be larger and more equally sized for future single-family homes. The applicant is 
in the process of vacating excess right-of-way to be included in the proposed lots. 
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  There are residential uses to the north and west of the 
subject property. The properties to the north and west are zoned R-1, Single-Family Residential. 
To the south and west, there are vacant wooded forest uses zoned A-2, General Agriculture.   
All adjunct lands are located in The Town of Beloit subject to Town zoning.    
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map recommends –Single-Family Residential -Urban for the subject properties.  
 
Municipal Utilities:  The subject properties are not currently served by municipal utilities.  
 
Review Agent Comments:  The proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) was sent to the City of 
Beloit Staff and Utility Contacts and we have received the following comment: 
 

• Alliant Energy has overhead electric facilities within this vacation area.  We will maintain 
our right-of-way rights within this zone.  It does appear to me that Lot 2 may be 
unbuildable due to the existing location of our poles.  Any relocation will be at the cost 
of the landowner. 

27



 

May 20 Staff Report 4(a), CSM-2020-10 Ravine Drive  (TOB)  

  
 
 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached 2-Lot Certified 
Survey Map (CSM) for the properties located on Ravine Drive in the Town of Beloit, subject to 
the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 
31, 2020 and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Preliminary Certified Survey Map, Plat of Vacation, Application, 
and Resolution. 

 

28



 

May 20 Staff Report 4(a), CSM-2020-10 Ravine Drive  (TOB)   

LOCATION MAP 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

29



 

May 20 Staff Report 4(a), CSM-2020-10 Ravine Drive  (TOB)   

   

30



 

May 20 Staff Report 4(a), CSM-2020-10 Ravine Drive  (TOB)   

  

31



 

May 20 Staff Report 4(a), CSM-2020-10 Ravine Drive  (TOB)   

32



 

May 20 Staff Report 4(a), CSM-2020-10 Ravine Drive  (TOB)   

 
  

33



 

May 20 Staff Report 4(a), CSM-2020-10 Ravine Drive  (TOB)  

RESOLUTION 
APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED ON RAVINE DRIVE 
 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 
City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located on 
Ravine Drive, containing 1.8 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction 
of the City of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
two-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

OF LOTS 15 THROUGH 24, BLOCK 4 OF THE RAVINES AND VACATED RAVINE 
DRIVE AND 6’ LANE, BEING PART OF GOVERNMENT LOTS 3 AND 4 OF SECTION 
14, T. 1 N., R. 12 E., OF THE 4TH P.M., BELOIT TOWNSHIP, ROCK COUNTY, 
WISCONSIN. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 

does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties 
located on Ravine Drive, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by 
December 31, 2020 and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services 
Division. 

 
Adopted this 20th day of May, 2020. 

 
 

Plan Commission 
 

 
  _ 

Timothy Weeden 
Plan Commission Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen 
Community Development Director 

34


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2018-2336 - Attachment
	2018-2329 - Attachment
	2018-2335 - Attachment
	2018-2334 - Attachment

